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ROSIE D. HARPER 
Certified Public Accountant, LLP 

2571 Tower Drive, Suite 7 • Monroe, Louisiana 71201 
Phone: (318) 387-8008 • Fax: (318) 387-0806 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Joanie Cannady, Mayor, 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 
Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 

Opinions 

I have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and 
each major fund of the Village of North Hodge, Louisiana (the "Village"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 
2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village of North Hodge, 
Louisiana's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Village as 
of September 30, 2023 and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. My 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of my report. I am required to be independent of the Village of North Hodge, 
Louisiana, and to meet my other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 
relating to my audit. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Village of North Hodge, Louisiana's ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the fmancial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 
Independent Auditor's Report on Financial (Continued) 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes rny opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material rnisstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud rnay involve collusion, forery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgrnent made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, I: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial staternents, whether due to fraud or en-or, 
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include exarnining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Village of North Hodge, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by managernent, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in rny judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Village of North Hodge, Louisiana's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

I am required to communicate with those charged with governance rmirding, arnong other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that I identified during 
the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Arnerica require that the management's discussion 
and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplernent the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of rnanagement and, although not a part of the basic financial staternents, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, econornic, or historical context. I have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with manaement's responses to my inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial staternents. I do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the lirnited procedures do not provide me with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 
Independent Auditor's Report on Financial (Continued) 

Supplementary Information 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
Village of North Hodge, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my 
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises 
the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and my auditor's report 
thereon. My opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and I do not express an 
opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with my audit of the basic fmancial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and 
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or 
the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, I conclude that an 
uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, I am required to describe it in my report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated March 29, 2024, on 
my consideration of the Village's internal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of 
that report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village's 
intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Village's intemal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Rosie D. Harper 
Certified Public Accountant 

Monroe, Louisiana 
March 29, 2024 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

(Part 1 of 2) 



VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE 
Post Office Box 520 

Hodge, Louisiana 71247 
Phone: (318) 259-4272 Fax: (318) 259-1055 

northhodgemayor(&gmail.com 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

The rnanagernent's discussion and analysis of the Village of North Hodge's financial perforrnance 
provides an overview of the financial activities for the year ended September 30, 2023. It is based 
upon currently known facts, decisions, and conditions. Please read it in conjunction with the financial 
staternents which begin on page 11. 

Basic Financial Statements 

The basic financial statements include governrnent-wide and fund financial staternents. The 
government-wide staternents consist of a Staternent of Net Position and a Statement of Activities and 
provide inforrnation about the financial activities of the Village as a whole. The government-wide 
staternents present a long-term view of our finances. Fund financial staternents consist of the respective 
fund's balance sheet and the fund's staternent of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance, if 
applicable. The fiind staternents tell how the Village's services were financed in the short-terrn and what 
remains forlidure spending. The primary difference between the fund and government-wide statement 
presentation rnethods is that expenditures for capital assets are expensed in the fund financial 
statements but capitalized and depreciated in the governrnent-wide staternents. 

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities 

One of the rnost important questions asked about our finances is, "Is the Village of North Hodge as a 
whole better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Staternent of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities report inforrnation about the Village as a whole and about its activities in 
a way that helps answer this question. These staternents include all assets and liabilities using the 
accrual basis of accounting, which is a rnethod sirnilar to accounting used by rnost private-sector 
cornpanies. All revenues and expenses of the current year are reported under this rnethod regardless 
of when cash is received or disbursed. 

These two staternents report the Village's net position and the changes in the net position. You can 
think of net position - the difference between assets and liabilities - as one way to rneasure the 
financial health, or financial position, of the Village. Increases/(decreases) in the Village's net 
position is one indicator of whether its financial health is irnproving/(deteriorating). You will need 
to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the Village's tax base and the 
condition of the Village's roads, to assess the overall health of the Village. 

In the Staternent of Net Position and Staternent of Activities, there are two kinds of activities: 
Governrnental Activities - Most of the Village's basic services are reported here, including 
the police, streets, sanitation, and general and administration. Sales taxes, ad valorern taxes, 
franchise taxes, fines, and grants finance most of these activities. Expenses primarily include 
salaries, supplies, utilities, and insurance. 
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Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion And Analysis (Continued) 

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities (Continued) 

Business-Type Activities - The Village's water and sewer system are reported here. The 
Village charges a fee to customers to cover the cost of these services. These charges finance 
most of these services. Expenses primarily include depreciation, system repairs and 
rnaintenance, and utilities. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted above, net position rnay serve as a useful indicator of the Village's financial position. The 
analysis below focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the 
governrnental and business-type activities of the Village of North Hodge. 

ASSETS 

Current anti Other Assets 

Capital Assets (Net) 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liahilities 

Non-current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 

Invested in Capital 

Assets Net of Debt 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

  

TABLE 1-SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

  

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 

148,306 

83,429 

$ 157.439 

87.393 

176,703 

1.599,861 

$ 208,379 

1.674.742 

325,009 

1,683,290 

365.818 

1.762.135 

231,735 244,832 1.776.564 1,883.121 2,008,299 2,127,953 

13,662 15,100 186,735 

151,897 

179.381 

178,646 

200,397 

151,897 

194,481 

178.646 

13,662 15.100 338,632 358.027 352,294 373.127 

83,429 

134,644 

87,393 

142.339 

1,433,036 

4,896 

1,484.590 

40.504 

1,516,465 

139,540 

1.571,983 

182.843 

218,073 $ 229.732 1,437,932 1.525.094 1,656,005 1,754.826 

For the year ended September 30, 2023, total net position decreased 5.63% ($98,821) compared to the 
prior year. There was a surplus of $182,843 in unrestricted net position at the end of the current year. 
Unrestricted net position can be used to finance the day-to-day operations of the Village without 
constraints. 

The largest portion, $1,516,465, of the Village's net position is invested in capital assets. These capital 
assets consist of land, water and sewer systern, streets, improvements, office furniture, and equiprnent. 
The Village uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, capital assets are 
not available for future spending. 

The Village's total net position included no restricted arnounts for 2023. 
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Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion And Analysis (Continued) 

TABLE 2 CHANGE IN NET POSITION-SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

Revenues 

Program Re'ren lief': 

Charges for Services 

Fines and Forfeitures 

Operating Grants and Contributions 

Capital Grants and 

Contributiuns 

General Revenues: 

Taxes 

Licenses 

Other 

Total Revenues 

Program Expenses 

General Government 

Police 

Streets 

Water and Sewer 

Interest on Bond Debt 

Total Expenses 

lnterfund Transfers la (Out) 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 

Net Position-Beginning 

Prior Period Adjustment 
Net Position - Endin 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government 

 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 

S 

68,287 

10,891 

119,111 

3,325 

13,496 

S 

93,110 

126,916 

1,990 

11,083 

S 146,976 

9,000 

3,136 

S 141,225 

69,646 

206,379 

2,109 

S 146,976 

68,287 

9,000 

- 

10,891 

119,111 

3,31s 

16,632 

S 141,225 

93,110 

69,646 

206,379 

- 

126,916 

1,990 

13,192 

 

215,110 233,099 159,112 419,359 374,222 652,458 

 

154,772 

75,897 

21,998 

124,710 

69,702 

18,930 

209,650 

9,365 

210,054 

10,466 

154,772 

75,897 

21,998 

209,650 

9,365 

124,710 

69,702 

18,930 

210,054 

10,466 

 

252,667 213,342 219,015 220,520 471,682 433,862 

 

27,259 

(10,298) 

229,732 

(1,361) 

(272) 

19,485 

201,595 

8,652 

(27,259) 

(87,162) 

1,525,094 

272 

199,111 

1,326,237 

(254) 

(97,460) 

1,754,826 

(1,361) 

218,596 

1,527,832 

8,398 

 

218,073 S 229,732 $ 1,437,932 S 1,525,094 $ 1,656,005 S 1,754,826 

Governmemal activities were responsible for a ($11,659) decrease in the Village's net position for the 
year ended Septernber 30, 2023. Revenue from police fines decreased ($24,823) in 2023. The 
Village's General government had an overall decrease in revenue of ($17,989) compared to 2022. 
General governrnent expenses increased by $39,325. The decrease in the Village's net position for 
the General governrnent was due to increase in expenses of the general govemment and an increase 
in revenue from bingo taxes. 

Business-type activities decreased net position by ($59,903) for the year ended September 30, 2023. 
The decrease in net position was due primarily to an decrease in grant revenue and the decrease in 
rates for utility services. 

Fund Financial Statements 

As of Septernber 30, 2023, the Village's governrnental funds reported a surplus fund balance of 
$218,596 which is $40,046 increase from the 2022 fund balance. 

Arnounts reported for business-type activities in the Village's individual funds are identical to the 
business-type activities reported in the government-wide presentation. 
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Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion And Analysis (Continued) 

Governmental Funds Budgetary Highlights 

The Village of North Hodge arnends its budget when it is deterrnined that there are unexpected 
differences between actual and anticipated revenues and/or expenditures. A budget arnendrnent was 
adopted for the year ended September 30, 2023. 

For the year ended September 30, 2023, the General Fund had a 7% favorable variance of $13,609 
between budgeted revenue versus actual revenue. The unfavorable variance between budgeted and 
actual expenses was 12% in the arnount of $25,010. The Village reported a deficiency of $24,772 in 
revenue over expenses. Also, the Village had a budget variance of $13,273 in the amounts 
transferred funds frorn the water and sewer to the general fund. 

Business-type Activity Budgetary Highlights 

The Village of North Hodge adopted a separate budget for its business-type activities (water and 
sewer fund) for the year ended September 30, 2023. Business-type activities had a favorable revenue 
variance of $1,997, 1%; and it had an unfavorable expense variance of $23,618, 18%. After debt 
service of $32,621 and interfund transfers of 27,259, the business-type activities had an unfavorable 
variance of $40,182 in excess of revenues and other sources of funds over expenses and other uses of 
funds for the year ended September 30, 2023. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

The Village had outstanding bond debt of $166,825 for the year ended Septernber 30, 2023. Principal 
payments of $23,326 and interest payments of $9,365 were made in 2023 on the outstanding debt. 
More detailed information about the District's long-term debt is presented in the notes to the financial 
statements. 

Currently Known Facts, Decisions, or Conditions 

We are not aware of any facts, decisions, or conditions that are expected to have a significant irnpact 
on the financial position or results of operations after the reporting date. 

Requests for Additional Information 

This financial report is designed to provide citizens and taxpayers with a general overview of the 
finances of the Village of North Hodge and to show accountability for the money it receives. If you 
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Village of North 
Hodge at P.O. Box 520, Hodge, Louisiana 71247. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



VILLACiE OF NORTH HODCiE, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 

September 30, 2023 

Assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business- Type 
Activities Tota I 

   

Cash & Cash Equivalents 320 1,960 $ 3,280 

Receivables 11,669 / 5,065 36,734 

Due from Other Funds 136,232 

 

136,232 

Restricted Assets: 

   

Cash & Cash Equivalents 85 148,253 148,338 

Investments - 425 4/5 

Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Deprec ation) 83,429 1,599,861 1,683,290 

Total Assets 231,735 1,776,564 2,008,299 

Liahilities 

   

Current Liabilities 

   

Accrued Liabilities 13,662 25,647 39,309 

Due to Other Funds - 136,232 136,232 

Current Portion Of 

Long-Term Deht - 24,565 24,565 

Bond Interest Payable - 291 291 

Total Current Liahilities 13,662 186,735 200,397 

Non-current Liabilities 

   

Meter Deposits - 9,637 9,637 

Bonds Payable - 142,260 14/,-)60 

Total Non-Current Liahilities - 151,897 151,897 

Total Liabilities 13,662 338,632 352,294 

Net Position 

   

Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Deht 83,429 1,433,036 1,516,465 

Unrestricted 134,644 4,896 139,540 

Total Net Position S 218,073 S 1,437,932 $ 1,656,005 

See Accompanyin Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to F nancial Statements. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Functions/Programs 

Program Revenues 

 

Net (Expenses) Revenues and 
Changes in Net Position 

Charges for Operating Grants 
Expenses Services and Contributions 

Capital Grants 
and Contributions 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

Pnmary Government 

     

Governmental Activities: 

     

General Govermnent x 154,772 - - S - (154,772) 

 

(154,772) 
Public Safety 75,897 - - - (75,897) 

 

(75,897) 
Streets 21,998 - - - (21,998) 

 

(21,998) 
Total Governmental Activities 252,667 - - - (252,667) 

 

(252,667) 
Butuiess Type Activities: 

     

Water ancl Sewer 209,650 146,976 - - - (62,674) (62,674) 

Grants - - 9,000 10,891 10,891 9,000 19,891 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 9,365 - - 

 

(9,365) (9,365) 
Total Business Type Activities 219,015 146,976 9,000 10,891 10,891 (63,039) (52,148) 

Total Primary Government S 471,682 S 146,976 S 9,000 S 10,891 (241,776) S (63,039) S (304,815) 

 

General Revenues: 

     

Taxes 

     

Property Taxes Levied for General Purposes 

 

7,003 

 

7,003 

 

Electronic Video Bingo 

 

79,819 

 

79,819 

 

Franchise Tax 

 

13,349 

 

13,349 

 

Sales Taxes 

 

18,940 

 

18,940 

 

Fines 

 

68,287 - 68,287 

 

Licenses and Permits 

 

3,325 

 

3,315 

 

Investment Earnings 

 

410 84 494 

 

Other Revenue 

 

13,086 3,052 16,138 

 

Transfers In (Out) 

 

27,259 (27,259) - 

 

Total General Revenues and Transfers 

 

231,478 (24,123) 207,355 

 

Change in Net Position 

 

(10,298) (87,162) (97,460) 

 

Net Position-October 1, 2022 

 

229,732 1,525,094 1,754,826 

 

Prior Period Adjustment 

 

(1,361) 

 

(1,361) 

 

Net Position-September 30, 2023 

 

218,073 1,437,932 1,656,005 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

Balance Sheet 

Govemmental Funds 

September 30, 2023 

Assets 

  

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 405 

Receivables (net) 

 

11,669 

Due From Other Funds 

 

136,232 

Total Assets 

 

148,306 

Liabilities and Fund Equity 

Liabilities: 

  

Accrued Liabilities 

 

13,662 

Total Liabilities 

 

13,662 

Fund Equity: 

  

Unassined 

 

134,644 

Total Fund Equity 

 

134,644 

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity 

 

148,306 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended 

Septernber 30, 2023 

Revenues 

  

Property Taxes $ 7,003 
Electronic Bingo 

 

79,819 

Franchise Taxes 

 

13,349 
Sales Taxes 

 

18,940 

Fines 

 

68,287 

Licenses and Permits 

 

3,325 

Other Revenues 

 

13,496 
Total Revenues 

 

204,219 

Expenditures 

General Government 

 

154,514 

Public Safety 

 

75,897 

Streets 

 

9,471 
Total Expenditures 

 

239,882 

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue 

 

(35,663) 

Other Financing Sources 

Transfers from Other Funds 

 

27,259 

Capital Grant 

 

10,891 

Cash Paid for Equipment 

 

(8,821) 

Total Other Financing Uses 

 

29,329 

Net Change in Fund Equity 

 

(6,334) 

Fund Balance-Beginning 

 

142,339 

Prior Period Adjustment 

 

(1,361) 

Fund Balance-Ending 

 

134,644 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of The Government Funds Balance Sheet 

to the Government-Wide Financial Statement of Net Position 

Septernber 30, 2023 

Fund Balance, Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for uovenunental activities in the Statement ot Net Assets are different 

because: 

Capital assets used in uovemmental actwities are not financial 

resources and, therefore, are not reported in the uovenunental 

funds. 

Net Assets of Governmental Activities 

S 134,644 

83,429 

S 218,073 
  

See Accompany ig Independent Au( or's Report and Notes to Fi ancial Statements. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 

=I Changes in Fuild Balances of Governmental Funds 

to the Statement of Activities 

for the Year F.nded September 30, 2023 

Net Change in Fund Balances, Total governmental Funds 

Amounts reported fur governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement 

of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as 

depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exeeeded eapital 

outlays in the current period. 

Also, cash expended fur capital assets is not reported in the statemen of act ties. 

Rounding Adjustment 

S (6,334) 

(12,786) 

8,821 

Changes Net Position of Governmental Activ ties (10,29)3)    

See Aeeumpanying Independent Aud tor's Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS 



VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

Staternent of Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 

September 30, 2023 

Water and Sewer 
Enterprise Fund 

Assets 

Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Customer Accounts Receivable 

State Income Tax Refundable 

Total Current Assets 

Restricted Assets: 

Cash 

Investments 

Total Restricted Assets 

Utility Plant: 

Capital Assets Net of Accumulated Deprecia on 

Net Utility Plant 

Total Assets 

$ 2,960 

12,939 

12,126 

28,025 

148,253 

425 

148,678 

1,599,861 

1,599,861 

1,776,564 

Liabilities 

Cunent 

Accrued Liabilities 25,647 

Due to Other Funds 136,-132 

Current Portion of Bonds Payable 24,565 

Bond Interest Payable 291  

Total Cuffent L-iabilities 186,735 

Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets: 

Customer Deposits 

Total Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 

Long-Term Liabilities: 

Bonds Payable 

Total Long-Tenn Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

142,260 

142,260 

338,632 

Net Position 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 

Unrestricted 

1,433,036 

4,896   

Total Net Position 1,437,932 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Fi ancial Statements. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended 

September 30, 2023 

Utility Operating Revenue: 

 

Water and Sewer 
Enterprise Fund 

 

Charges for Water and Sewer 146,976 
Other Income 3,052 

Total Operating Revenue 150,028 
Operating Expenses: 

 

Contract Labor 3,831 

Depreciation Expense 74,882 

Office 1,272 

Other Operating 30,137 

Repairs and Maintenance 3,106 

Salaries 80,046 

Supplies 2,097 
Telephone & Utilities 14,279 

Total Operating Expenses 209,650 

Utility Operating Loss (59,622) 
Other Income and Deductions: 

 

Operating Grants 9,000 

Interest and Dividend Revenue 84 

Interest on Long-Term Debt (9,365) 

Total Other Income and Deductions (281) 
Income Before Transfers In (Out) (59,903) 

Operating Transfer In (Out) (27,259) 
Change in Net Position (87,162) 

Total Net Position, Beginning 1,525,094 
Prior Period Adjustment 

 

Total Net Position, Ending 1,437,932 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 

September 30, 2023 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Cash Received from Customers 158.104 
Net Decrease in Customer Deposits (2.360) 

Other Cash Received 3,052 
Cash Paid to Employees for Services (79,990) 

Cash Paid for Goods and Services (57.653) 

Net Cush Provided bv Operating Aetivities 21,153 

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities 

Imerfund Liability/Asset 
Transfers to Other Funds 

Net Cash Used by Non-Capital Financing Activities 

8,801 
(27,259) 

(18.458)   

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Cash from Grants 9.000 
Principal Paid on Bond Debt (23,326) 
Interest Paid on Long Term Debt (9,365) 

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Ac ties (23.691) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Interest and Dividend Income 84 

Net Cash Provided by Investinu Activ ties 84 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( 2(1,912) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents-Beginning 172,125  
Cash and Cash E.quivalents-Endinu S 151.213 

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to the Balance Sheet 
September 30, 2023 

End Beginning 

of Year of Year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents in Current and Accrued Assets 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

2,960 $ 2,746 
148,253 169,379 
151,213 $ 172,125     

Reconciliation of Utility Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Utility Operating Loss (59,622) 
Adjustments: 

Depreciat on Expense 74,882 
Decrease in Customer Accounts Receivables 10,764 
Increase in State Income Tax Refund Receivable (12,126) 
Decrease in Accrued Liabilities (5,566) 
Decrease in Interest Payable (93) 
Increase in Meter Deposits Payable 3,760 
Prior Period Adjustment 

Total Adjustments 71,621  
Net Cash Provided by Operating Act ties 11,999  

There were no operating investing, or financing acticities during the year that did not result in cash 
receipts or payments. 

See Accompan_N,, ng Independent Aud or's Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

The Village of North Hodge, Louisiana, was incorporated August 5, 1953, under the provisions of 
the Lawrason Act. The Village operates under a Mayor-Board of Aldermen form of government. 
Services provided by the Village include police protection and street maintenance. The Village also 
operates a water distribution systern and sewer systern for about 156 custorners. 

The accompanying basic financial staternents of the Village of North Hodge, Louisiana, are 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting, principles (GAAP). The Governrnental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing generally accepted 
accounting principles for state and local governrnents through its pronouncernents (Statements of 
Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the 
Village are discussed below. 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) establishes the criteria for determining 
the governmental reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting 
entity. Under these provisions, the Village of North Hodge is considered a primary governrnent, 
since it is a general purpose local governmenl that has an elected governing body, is legally 
separate, and is fiscally independent of other state and local governments. As used by GASB, 
fiscally independent means that the municipality may, without the approval or consent of another 
governmental entity, detertnine or modify its own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, 
and issue bonded debt. Cornponent units can be identified by financial accountability and whether 
exclusion would create misleading or incomplete financial statements. No component units were 
identified for the Village of North Hodge. 

B. Basic Financial Statements--Government-Wide Statements 

The Village's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Village as a 
whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Village's major funds). Both governrnent-wide 
and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type. 
The Village's police protection, highways and streets, and general administrative services are 
classified as govenunental activities. The Village's water and sewer services are classified as 
business-type activities. 

In the government-wide Staternent of Net Position, both the governrnental and business-type 
activities columns are presented on a consolidated basis by column. They are reported on a full 
accntal, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as 
long-term debt and obligations. The Village's net position is reported in three parts—invested in 
capital assets, restricted net position, and unrestricted net position. 

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net costs of each of the 
Village's functions and business-type activities. The functions are also supported by general 
governrnent revenues. The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) 
by related prograrn revenues, operating grants, and capital grants. Prograrn revenues must he 

directly associated with the function or a business-type activity. The nel covs (by function or 



VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

B. Basic Financial Statements--Government-Wide Statements (Continued) 

business-type activity) are norrnally covered by general revenue (taxes, interest incoine, etc.). The 
Village does not allocate indirect costs. 

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Village as an entity and the change 
in the Village's net position resulting from the current year's activities. 

C. Basic Financial Statements--Fund Financial Statements 

The financial transactions of the Village of North Hodge are reported in individual fimds in the fimd 
financial staternents. Each fitnd is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The 
various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements. The following 
funds are used by the Village of North Hodge: 

Governmental Funds--The focus of the governmental funds' rneasurernent (in the fund staternents) is 
upon determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances 
of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the governinental 
funds of the Village of North Hodge: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Village. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The activities reported in this fund are reported as governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary Funds--The focus of proprietary fund measurernent is upon determination of operating 
income, changes in net asset, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting 
principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a 
description of the proprietary fiinds of the Village: 

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a 
fee is charged to external users for goods or services and the activity establishes fees and charges 
based on a pricing policy designed to recover siinilar costs. 

The activities reported in this fund are reported as business-type activities in the governrnent-
wide financial statements. 

In the governrnental fimd financial statements, fiind balances are classified to describe the relative 
strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used. These 
classifications are as follows: nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. When 
fund balance resources are available for a specific purpose in more than one classification, it is the 
Village's policy to use the most restrictive fiinds first in the following order: restricted, cornrnitted, 
assigned, and unassigned as they are needed. 



VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized 
in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurement 
made, regardless of the measurernent focus applied. 

Accrual — Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements and the proprietary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Property taxes are reported in the period for which levied. Sales tax collected and held 
by the sales tax collection agency at year end on-behalf of the government are reported in the 
period for which they were collected. Other nonexchange revenues, including interuovernmental 
revenues and grants, are reported when all eligibility requirements have been met. Fees, charges, 
and other exchange revenue are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when 
incurred. 

Modified Accrual -- The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both 
measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 
days after year end. Property tax revenues are recognized in the period for which levied provided 
they are also available. Sales tax collected and held by the sales tax collection agency at year end 
on behalf of the government are reported in the period for which they were collected provided they 
are also available. Intergovernrnental revenues and grants are recognized when all eligibility 
requirements are met, and the revenues are available. Expenditures are recognized when the related 
liability is incurred. Exceptions to this general rule include principal and interest on general 
obligation long-term debt and ernployee vacation and sick leave, which are recognized when due 
and payable. 

The Village reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise 
when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for 
recognition in the current period. In the subsequent period, when both revenue recognition 
criteria are met, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet 
and revenue is recognized. 

The revenues susceptible to accrnal are franchise fees, interest incorne, and intergovernrnental 
revenues. All other governmental fund revenues are recognized when received. 

E. Budgetary Practices 

The village of North Hodge, Louisiana, was required to prepare an operating budget, on a basis 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles, on its general fund for the year ended 
September 30, 2023, as required by Louisiana law. The proposed original buduet for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2023 was adopted on September 20, 2021. An amended budget for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2023 was adopted on Septernber 5, 2023. 

Although the Village was not required by statue to adopt a budget for the business-activity fund, a 
budget was adopted for the business-activity fund on September 20, 2021.. An arnended budget for 
the fiscal year ended Septernber 30, 2023 was adopted on September 5, 2023. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

F. Cash Deposits and Investments 

Under state law, the Village of North Hodge may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest 
bearing dernand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state banks organized 
under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal office in Louisiana. Deposits are 
carried at cost which approximates market value. 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, dernand deposits, interest-bearing dernand 
deposits, and short-terrn time deposits with original maturities of three months or less from date of 
acquisition. Under state law, the Village of North Hodge may invest funds in collateralized certificates 
of deposit, government backed securities, commercial paper, the state sponsored investrnent pool, and 
mutual funds consisting solely of governrnent backed securities. Investments are reported at fair value. 

G. Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets represent resources that must be expended in a specific manner. The "customers" 
deposits account is used to report amounts being held for custorners' meter deposits. A 
corresponding liability is presented to record these funds held by the enterprise fund. The Village 
also receives grants for specific purposes. The proceeds frorn these grants were deposited into a 
separate account and are restricted to the purpose for which they were approved. A corresponding 
liability is recorded for amounts payable on the project. 

In compliance with its bond covenant, the Village is required to established restricted cash accounts 
for debt service and fund in the amount of 8272.60 per rnonth effective October 1, 2014. The Village 
is also required to establish a separate account in the Village's name as a security for the utility services 
and is to be refunded to the customer upon termination of services and outstanding utility amounts are 
fully satisfied. 

H. Compensated Absences 

Vacation and sick leave are noncumulative. Ernployees who work 28 hours a week or more receive 
four (4) days of vacation, four (4) days of sick leave and (4) inclernent weather days (that are not 
guaranteed) annually. There are no accumulated and vested benefits relating to vacation and sick 
leave that require accnial or disclosure at year end. Employees are entitled to paid official holidays 
that are considered holidays by the State of Louisiana. 

I. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conforrnity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires mannernent to rnake estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staternents 
and the reported arnounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

J. Inter-fund Receivables and Payables 

Inter-fund activity is reported as loans, reimbursernents, or transfers. Loans are reported as inter-
fund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elirnination upon consolidation. 
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

J. Inter-fund Receivables and Payables (Continued) 

reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other inter-fund transactions are treated as transfers. 
Transfers between governrnental or between proprietary funds are netted as part of the 
reconciliation to the governrnent-wide financial staternents. At the end of the fiscal year, 
outstanding funds are referred to as "due to/frorn other funds" on the fund financial staternents 
balance sheets. Any residual balances outstanding between the governrnental activities and 
business-type activities are reported in the governrnent-wide financial staternents as "internal 
balances." 

K. Equity Classifications 

Government Wide Statements--Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three 
cornponents: 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including restricted 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, rnortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
constmction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governrnents; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net position - A11 other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" 
or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt." 

Fund Financial Statements--Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. The 
following classifications are used to describe the relative strength of the spending constraints 
placed on the purpose for which resources can be used: 

Non-spendable Fund Balance - arnounts that are not in spendable form (such as prepaids) or are 
required to be rnaintained intact. 

Restricted Fund Balance - arnounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as 
grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or 
by enabling legislation. 

Committed Fund Balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a governrnent itself, 
using its highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts 
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the governrnent takes the same highest-level action 
to remove or change the constraint. 

Assigned Fund Balance - amounts the governrnent intends to use for a specific purpose; intent 
can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body 
delegates the authority. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; positive arnounts are 
reported only in the general fund. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Proprietary fund equity is classified the sarne as governrnent wide staternents. 

L. Statement of Cash Flows 

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, all cash and cash equivalents are considered cash 
regardless of whether there are restrictions on their use. 

M. Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

The Village reports decreases in net assets that relate to future periods as deferred outflows of 
resources and increases in net assets that relate to future periods as deferred inflows of resources 
in a separate section of its government-wide and proprietary fund staternents of net position. There 
were no deferred outflows or deferred inflows of resources reported in this year's financial 
statements. 

N. Receivables 

Ad valorem tax and proprietary fund receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible 
arnounts. Estimated uncollectible amounts are recognized as a reduction in revenue in the general 
fund and as bad debt expense in the proprietaiy fund through an allowance established based upon 
collection experience and other factors which indicate possible uncollectibility. 

Ad valorern taxes are levied on a calendar year basis and become delinquent after Decernber 31. 
The Village bills and collects its own ad valorem taxes. For the year ended September 30, 2022, 
ad valorern taxes, one rate of tax was levied on property within the corporate limits, as follows: 

7.63 mills for the general maintenance of the Village. This rnillage was approved by the Board 
of Aldermen August 11, 2020. This rnillage is the rnaxirnurn millage that can be assessed 
without the approval of voters. 

For the year ended September 30, 2023, taxes of $7,241 were levied on property. Taxes receivable 
at Septernber 30, 2023 consisted of the following: 

Taxes Receivable $ 1,074 
Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 

Net Ad Valorern Taxes Receivable 1,074 

The following are the principal taxpayers and their related ad valorern tax revenue for the Village: 

Longleaf Estates 570 
Cellco Partnership 224 
Atrnos Energy 344 

Total 1,138 

By special election, duly called and held, on July 11, 1981, the qualified electors of the Village of 
Noith Hodge authorized a one-cent sale and use tax levy, as defined in Louisiana R.S. 47:301 to 
Louisiana R.S. 47:317, to be dedicated and used for the purpose of providing fiinds for any lawfiil 
corporate. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

N. Receivables (Continued) 

purpose of the Village. The Village adopted Ordinance Nurnber 177 on August 13, 1981, whereby this 
tax was levied from and after October 1, 1981. 

O. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar iterns), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the govemment-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost. 
Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estirnated fair market value at the date of donation. 
Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset 
are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. All capital 
assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line rnethod over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

Buildings 40 years 
Irnprovernents 10 to 20 years 
Streets 20 years 
Water and Sewer Systems 10 to 50 years 
Machinery, Equipment, and Furniture 5 to 10 years 

General infrastructure capital assets consisting of streets, bridges, sidewalks, and drainage systeins 
acquired before January 1, 2004, are excluded from capital assets. 

P. Interfund Transfers 

Pennanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity are classified as inter-fund 
transfers. For the purposes of the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual 
crovernrnental funds have been eliminated. 

Q. Defining Operating Revenues and Expenses 

The Village's proprietary funds distinguish between operating and non-operating revenues and 
expenses. Operating revenues and expenses of the Village's water and sewer fund consist of 
charges for services and cost of providing those services, including depreciation and excluding 
interest cost. All other revenues and expenses are reported as non-operating. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NO IL 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

At Septernber 30, 2023, the Village had cash and cash equivalents (restricted and unrestricted) 
as follows: 

Unrestricted 

    

Cash 
Certificate of 

Deposit Total 

    

Cash on Hand $ 200 $ - $ 200 
Demand Deposits 3,080 

 

- 3,080 
Restricted 

    

Demand Deposits 148,338 

 

- 148,338 
Time Deposit 

  

4/5 425 
Total $ 151,618 

 

425 $ 152,043 

The Village maintains its cash accounts at a local bank which provides Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) coverage of $250,000 for all demand deposits and $250,000 for all time deposits. 
At Septernber 30, 2023, the Village has $152,043 in deposits (collected bank balances), which is secured 
frorn risk by FDIC insurance. 

Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) rnust be secured by federal deposit 
insurance, or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged 
securities plus the federal deposit insurance must, at all times, equal or exceed the amount on deposit with 
the fiscal agent. 

NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE 

For the year ended Septernber 30, 2023, interfund receivables and payables are as follows: 

Due to General Government from Sewer and Water $ 136,232 
Due from Sewer and Water to General Government (136,232) 

Net Interfund Receivables & Payables 

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Restricted assets for the proprietary fund were applicable to the following at Septernber 30, 2023: 

Customers' Deposits 11,517 
Kirkpatrick Family Park 350 
State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 94,790 
Debt Service 41,543 

Total $ 148,200 

The Village received contributions from the public for irnprovernents to a local park. Those funds were 
deposited into a separate account. At Septernber 30, 2023, the remaining fimds received for the park 
were $350. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 5 - ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

At Septernber 30, 2023, the Village had the following accnied liabilities: 

General Fund Sewer & Water Total 
Payroll Taxes $ 11,072 $ 11,729 $ 22,801 

Total $ 11,072 $ 11,729 $ 22,801 

$18,744 of the payroll tax liabilities were owed for past due payroll taxes, interest and penalties for fiscal 
years ending September 30, 2015 and September 30, 2016. The Village paid the total balance of past 
due taxes for 2015 and 2016 on January 24, 2024. 

NOTE 6 - ASSETS 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended Septernber 30, 2023 for the 
Village is as follows: 

Government Act iN ies: 
Capital Assets 

Land 
Buildings 
Improvements 
Streets 

Balance 10/1/22 Additions Deletions Balance 9/30/23 

$ 2,775 
20,441 
11,895 

221,007 

$ 

 

$ - $ 
- 
- 
- 

2.775 
20.441 
11,895 

221,007 
Equipment 

 

93,784 

 

8.821 - 102.605 
Total Cap ital Assets 

 

349,902 

 

8,821 

 

358,723 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 

      

Buildings 

 

18,240 

 

258 - 18.498 
Improvements 

 

7,259 

  

- 7.259 
Streets 

 

146,209 

 

12,527 - 158,736 
Equipment 

 

90,801 

 

- - 90,801 
Total Accumulated Depreciation 

   

12,785 - 275,294 
Governmental Capital Assets, Net $ 

2
8
62

7:3
50:

3
) 

$ (3,964) $ - $ 83.429 

Busthess-Type Act N, es 
Capital Assets 

Land 
Buildings 
Machinery and Equipm ent 

    

Balance 10/1/22 Additions Deletions Balance 9/30/23 

20,127 
1,955 

130,855 

$ - 
- 

- 
- 
- 

$ 20,127 
1,955 

130.855 
Water and Sewer System 3,022,763 

 

- 3,022.763 
Total 3,175,700 

 

- 3.175,700 

Less Accuniulated Depreciation 
Buildings 1,955 

 

- 1,955 
Machinery and Equipment 153,948 - - 153,948 
Water and Sewer System 1,345,054 74,882 - 1,419,936 

Total Accumulated Deprec at on 1,500,957 74,882 - 1,575,839 
Bus ess-Type Capital Assets. Net $ 1,674,743 $ (74,882) $ $ 1,599,861 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES 

Accounts receivable consisted of custorner billings for water and sewer usage. There were 156 customer 
accounts totaling $12,939 consisting of 54 customers with past due balances of $4,074 at September 30, 
2023. 

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-Term debt payable is comprised of the following individual debt instruments: 

Revenue Bonds  

$340,000 Utilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2014, dated Septeinber 18, 2014, due in 

monthly installments of $2,726 beginning October 18, 2014 for fifteen years, interest at 

5.9% on $255,000 of bonds and 3% on $85,000: secured by revenues earned by the 

Village of North Hodge, derived from the operation o f the utility system. 

Balance at October 1 $ 166,825 

Less: CuiTent Maturities 

Adjustment (24,565) 

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities $ 142,260 

The annual debt service requirernents to maturity to all issued debt outstanding as of September 30, 2023 
are as follows: 

Year Principal Interest 
2()24 24,565 8,211 
2()25 25,806 6,907 
2026 27,184 5,529 
2()27 28,717 3,996 
2028 30,179 2,534 
2029 30,374 908 

 

$ 166,825 28,085 

At September 30, 2023, the debt reserve account was required to be funded as follows: 

Required Beginning Balance $ 26,169 
Required 2022 Deposits 3,271 

Requird Ending Balance $ 29,440 

Actual Balance $ 29,459 
Surplus Funding 19 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 9 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 

In March of 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) was signed into law. The ARPA 
provides additional relief to address the continued impacts of COVID-19 on the economy, public 
heath, state and local governments, individuals and businesses. The funding laid out in ARPA extends 
to a wide range of programs, including but not limited to, nutrition, schools and higher education 
institutions, childcare, COVID-19 testing and treatment, mental health, housing assistance, healthcare 
and transportation. One of the new programs created under ARPA is related to the Coronavirus State 
and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds. 

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) provided over $350 billion to states, 
tribal entities, U.S. territories, and local governments. They can be used for the following: 

• Covering costs to respond to the public health emergency or its negative economic impacts. 

• Responding to workers performing essential services. 

• The provision of government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue due to 
COVID-19. 

• Making necessary investments in water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure. 

For the years ended September 30, 2021 and September 30, 2022, the Village received total SLFRF 
in the amount of $139,178. The Village plans to use the funding for sewer and water capital 
expenditures. The funds are required to be obligated by December 31, 2024 and expended by 
December 31, 2026. As of September 30, 2023, the Village had expended $54,475 and identified 
$75,320 in other projects to be obligated before December 31, 2024. The balance of $6,383 is 
expected to be obligated before the December 31, 2024 deadline. 

NOTE 10 — Delta Regional Authority (DRA) Grant 

The Delta Regional Authority (DRA) Grant's goal is to improve workforce competitiveness, strengthen 
infrastructure, and increase community capacity. For the year ended September 30, 2023, the Village 
received DRA grant funds in the amount of $200,224. 

NOTE 11 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

At September 30, 2023, the Village had the following prior period adjustment: 

General Fund Sewer & Water Total 
Understatement of Expenses $ 8,652 (254) 

Total 8,652 $ (254) $ 8,398 

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were 
available to be issued, March 29, 2024, and determined that no events occurred that require 
disclosure. No subsequent events occurring after this date have been evaluated for inclusion in these 
financial statements. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-GENERAL FUND 

Year Ended September 30, 2023 

REVENUE 

Taxes 

 

Budget Amounts 

 

Variance with Final Budget 

 

Original Final Actual 

 

(1/0 

      

Ad Valorem 5 7,000 $ 7,300 7,003 $ 297 4% 

Electronic Bingo 

 

80,300 80,000 79,819 181 0% 

Franchiseinsurance 

 

13,500 13,500 13,349 151 1% 

Sales 

 

19,200 18,500 18,940 (440) -2% 

Licenses and Permits 

 

5,200 7,200 3,315 3,875 54% 

Fines ancl Forfeitures 

 

110,000 70,000 68,287 1,713 2% 

Grants 

 

- - 10,891 (10,891) -100% 

Interest and Miscellaneous 

 

5,001 5,001 13,496 (8,495) -170% 

Total Revenues 

 

240,201 201,501 215,110 (13,609) -7% 

EXPENDITURES 

      

Current: 

      

General Government 

 

125,868 133,910 154,514 (2t),604) -15% 

Puhlic Safety 

 

69,225 69,800 75,897 (6,097) -9% 

Highways and Streets 

 

10,165 11,162 9,471 1,691 15% 

Total Expenditures 

 

205,258 214,872 239,882 (25,010) -12% 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 

Expenditures 

 

34,943 (13,371) (24,772) 11,401 -85% 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

      

Transfers from (to) Other Funds 

 

- 13,986 27,259 (13,273) -95% 

Cash Paid for Equipment 

 

- 

 

(8,821) 8,821 100% 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 

      

Expenditures and Other Financing 

Sources (Uses) 

 

34,943 615 (6,334) 6,949 1130% 

Fund Balances (Deficit) , Begiruiing 

 

44,816 11,650 142,339 

 

0% 

Prior Period Adjustment 

   

(1,361) 1,361 100% 

Fund Balances, Ending S 79,759 S 12,265 134,644 $ 8,310 68% 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL-PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Year Ended September 30, 2023 

REVENUE 

Budget Amounts 

 

Variance with Final Budget 

Original Final Actual 

       

Water and Sewer Charges $ 145,750 $ 145,750 146,976 (1,226) -1% 

Grants 9,000 9,000 9,000 - 0% 

ARP Funds - 

 

- - 0% 

Other Revenue 2,365 2,365 3,136 (771) -33% 

Total Revenues 157,115 157,115 159,112 (1,997) -1% 

EXPENSES 

     

Contract Labor 9,000 9,000 3,831 5,169 57% 

Office 1,175 1,175 1,272 (97) _8% 

Other Operatine 12,875 12,875 30,137 (17,262) -134% 

Repairs and Maintenance 13,200 13,200 3,106 10,094 76% 

Salaries 60,200 60,200 80,046 (19,846) -33% 

Supplies 1,700 1,700 2,097 (397) : 33% 

Telephone & Utilities 13,000 13,000 14,279 (1,279) -10% 

Total Expenditures 111,150 111,150 134,768 (23,618) -18% 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 

Expenditures 45,965 45,965 24,344 21,621 89% 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

     

Debt Service (32,713) (32,713) (32,691) (22) 0% 

Transfers from (to) Other Funds (8,676) (8,676) (27,259) 18,583 -214% 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (41,389) (41,389) (59,950) 18,561 -45% 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 

Expenditures and Other Financimz 

Sources (Uses) 

     

4,576 4,576 (35,606) $ 40,182 878% 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to F nancial Statements. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF MAYOR'S AND ALDERMEN'S COMPENSATION 

As of and for the Year Ended Septernber 30, 2023 

The schedule of cornpensation paid to the rnayor and alderrnen is presented in cornpliance with House 
Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Cornpensation of the 
board mernbers is included in the general governrnent expenditures of the General Fund. The rnayor 
and alderrnen receive cornpensation pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statute 33: 404.1. 

Name Title Term Re-Elected 

2023 

Compensation 

Joanie Cannady Mayor 01/01/23-12/31/26 

 

13,787 

Kathy Robertson Former Mayor 01/01/19-12/31/22 

 

4,500 

Chasity Davis Former Alderman 01/01/19-12/31/22 

 

975 

Sarah E. Heard Alderrnan 01/(11/23-12/31/26 

 

2,925 

Ernest Roden Alderman Ol/01/19-12/31/22 01/(11/23-12/31/26 3,900 

Andrea D. Woods Alderrnan 01/01/19-12/31/22 01/(11/23-12/31/26 3,900 

Total Mayor's and Alderman's Cornpensation  29,987 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS 
TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

As of and for the Year Ended Septernber 30, 2023 

Agency Head Narne: Mayor Joanie Cannady 

Name Term 2023 

Joanie Cannady 01/01/23 - 12/31/26 

Salary $ 13,500 
Reimbursements 287 

Total Cornpensation, Benefits, and Other Payrnents to 
Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer $ 13,787 

Name Term 2023 

Kathy Roberson (Fortner Mayor) 01/01/19 - 12/31/22 
Salaiy 

Total Cornpensation, Benefits, and Other Payrnents to 
Former Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer 

$ 4,500 

$ 4,500 
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Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 

Justice System Funding Schedule 

Receiving Entity 

Year Ended September 30, 2023 

   

First Six 
Month Period 

Ended 

Second Six 
Month Period 

Ended 

Cash Basis Presentation 3/31/2023 9/30/2023 

Receipts Frorn: 

  

Village of North Hodge Mayoral Court-Traffic Fines 12,664 $ 11,363 

Service Fees by Third Party Collecting Agencies 1,307 1,637 

Total Receipts 13,971 13,000 

Amounts Retained by Third Party Collecting Agencies (1,307) (1,637) 

Net Receipts 12,664 11,363 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 
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ROSIE D. HARPER 
Certified Public Accountant, LLP 

2571 Tower Drive, Suite 7 • Monroe, Louisiana 71201 
Phone: (318) 387-8008 • Fax: (318) 387-0806 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Joanie Cannady, Mayor, 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 
Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, and each major fund of Village of North Hodge, Louisiana (the "Village"), as of and 
for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 's basic financial statements and have issued my report 
thereon dated March 29, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered the Village of North Hodge, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of 
North Hodge, Louisiana 's internal control. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Village's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Village's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have 
not been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, 
I identified a certain deficiency in internal as item 2023-1 that I consider to be a material weakness. 
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Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 
Independent Auditor's Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On 
Compliance And Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed 
In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards (Continued) 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of my audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The 
results of my tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs as item 2023-1. 

The Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 's Responses to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Village of North 
Hodge, Louisiana's response to the findings identified in my audit and described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questions costs. The Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 's responses were not 
subjected to other the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, I 
express no opinion on the responses. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village's internal control 
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Village's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the council members, others 
within the Village, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513, this report is distributed by Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Rosie D. Harper 
Certified Public Accountant 

Monroe, Louisiana 
March 29, 2024 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS WITH 
MANAGEMENTS RESPONSE AND PLANNED CORRECTIVE ACTION 

As of and for the Year Ended Septernber 30, 2023 

I have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each 
major fund of village of North Hodge, Louisiana (the "villae"), as of and for the year ended Septernber 30, 
2023, and the related notes to the financial staternents, which collectively cornprise the villzwe's basic 
financial statements and have issued my report thereon dated March 29, 2024. I conducted my audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. My audit of the financial staternents as of Septernber 30, 2023 resulted in an unrnodified 
opinion. 

Section I - Swmary of Auditor's Report 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit 
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Governinent Auditing Standards 

Internal Control 
Significant Deficiencies Yes No Material Weaknesses Yes No ❑ 

Compliance 
Material to Financial Statements Yes No D 

2023-1 Noncornpliance with law LA R.S. 39:1310 amending the adopted budget. 

Criteria: 

Condition: 

Cause: 

R.S. 39:1310 states that governing authorities shall arnend the (adopted) budget 
if there has been a change in operations upon which the original adopted budget 
was developed. The governing authority must adopt a budget arnendrnent if 
there is a 5% or greater shortage in revenue or a 5% or greater overage in 
expenditures or if there is a 5% or greater variance in the actual fund balance at 
the beginning of the year. 

For the year ended Septernber 30, 2023, the Village had a 12% unfavorable 
variance in the general fund budget for actual expenditures in excess of adopted 
budgeted expenditures. Although an amendrnent to the adopted budget was 
prepared, the amendment did not consider the additional overage in 
expenditures. 

The budget amendrnent did not consider the additional more than the 5% in 
expenditures. 

Effect: The Village was in violation of LA R.S. 39:1310. 

Recomrnendation: The Village should comply with the law LA R.S. 39:1310 when amending the 
adopted budget and ensure if there is not a 5% or greater shortage in revenue or 
a 5% or greater overage in expenditures or if there is a 5% or greater variance in 
the actual fund balance that the amendment properly considers all additional 
overages in expenditures. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS WITH 
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE AND PLANNED CORRECTIVE ACTION (Continued) 

Management's Response and Planned Corrective Action: 

The Village concurs with this statement and understands that we will update our policies and 
procedures about budgeting to ensure that the actual revenue does not have a 5% or greater 
shortage or a 5% or more overage in expenditures or a 5% or more variance, and that any 
amendments will be considered for additional overage in expenditures. 
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VILLAGE OF NORTH HODGE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

FINDINGS-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

2022-1 - Noncornpliance with revenue bond covenant agreement (Repeat Finding)- The resolution 
authorizing the sewer revenue bonds requires the following: 

1. The Village establish a separate bond reserve fund and rnonthly deposits of $272.60 are required 
to be made to the fund. 

STATUS: CLEARED 

2022-2: - Untimely payroll tax payments (Repeal Finding)-Federal and state statue require payroll taxes 
to be deposited tirnely. For the year ended Septernber 30, 2021, the Village had unpaid federal payroll 
taxes, penalties and interest of $50,670 and unpaid state payroll taxes, penalties and interest $6,850 which 
were incurred during fiscal years ended Septernber 30, 2015 and September 30, 2016. 

STATUS: CLEARED 

2022-3: - Untimely reconciliation of bank statements- Bank statements were not reconciled within 
60 days of receipt to protect the Village against the risk of losses frorn fraudulent transactions and 
errors. For the year ended September 30, 2021, the Village's bank statements were reconciled over 
60 days after receipt. 

STATUS: CLEARED 
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Village of North Hodge 
P.O. Box 520 I Hodge, Louisiana 71247 

Email: northhodgemayor@gmail.com  

Phone: 318-259-4272 Fax: 318-259-1055 

Mayor Joanie Cannady 

To: Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

March 29, 2024 

Subject: Audit Findings and Management Corrective Action Plan 

Dear Sir: 

In response to the audit findings for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023, The Village of North 
Hodge, Louisiana will implement the following corrective action plan: 

2023-1 Noncompliance with law LA R.S. 39:1310 amending the adopted budget. 

Criteria: 

Condition: 

R.S. 39:1310 states that governing authorities shall amend the (adopted) budget if 
there has been a change in operations upon which the original adopted budget was 
developed. The governing authority must adopt a budget amendment if there is a 
5% or greater shortage in revenue or a 5% or greater overage in expenditures or if 
there is a 5% or greater variance in the actual fund balance at the beginning of the 
year. 

For the year ended September 30, 2023, the Village had a 12% unfavorable 
variance in the general fund budget for actual expenditures in excess of adopted 
budgeted expenditures. Although an amendment to the adopted budget was 
prepared, the amendment did not consider the additional overage in expenditures. 

Cause: The budget amendment did not consider the additional more than the 5% in 
expenditures. 

Effect: The Village was in violation of LA R.S. 39:1310. 

Recommendation: The Village should comply with the law LA R.S. 39:1310 when amending the 
adopted budget and ensure if there is not a 5% or greater shortage in revenue or a 
5% or greater overage in expenditures or if there is a 5% or greater variance in the 
actual fund balance that the amendment properly considers all additional overages 
in expenditures. 

Management's Response and Planned Corrective Action: 

The Village concurs with this statement and understands that we will update our policies and 
procedures about budgeting to ensure that the actual revenue does not have a 5% or greater 
shortage or a 5% or more overage in expenditures or a 5% or more variance, and that any 
amendments will be considered for additional overage in expenditures. 
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ROSIE D. HARPER 
Ccrtificd Public Accountant, LLP 

2571 Tower Drive Suite 7 • Monroe, Louisiana 71201 
Phone: (318) 387-8008 • Fax: (318) 387-0806 

IN DEPEN DENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Alderrnan 
Thc Villagc of North Hodgc, Louisiana, and thc Louisiana Lcgislativc Auditor: 

I have performed the procedures enurnerated below, which were agreed to by The Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 
(Village) and thc Louisiana Lcgislativc Auditor (LLA) on thc control and compliancc (C!C) arcas idcntificd in thc 
LLA's Statcwidc Agrccd-Upon Proccdurcs (SAUPs) for thc fiscal period Octobcr 1, 2022, through September 30, 
2023. The Village's management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

This agrccd-upon procedures cngagcmcnt was conducted in accordancc with attestation standards established by thc 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. The 
sufficicncy of thcsc procedures is solcly thc responsibility of thc spccificd users of this rcport. Conscqucntly, wc makc 
no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the puipose for which this 
report has been requested or for any other puipose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Policies and P rocedures 

I ) I obtained and inspected the Entity's written policies and procedures and observed whether those written policies 
and procedures addressed cach of thc following catcgorics and subcategories, as applicablc: 

a) Budgeting, including prcparing, adopting, monitoring, and amcnding thc budgct. 

The Village does have written yuidelines for adoptinu, monitorinu, and amending the budget. The Village 
docs prcparc budgcts for all funds. Thc Villagc follows thc Louisiana Local Government Budgct Act for 
adopting and amending the budget. A budget to actual report is presented to the board of alderman at each 
mccting.  

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor list; (3) the 
prcparation and approval proccss of purchase rcquisitions and purchase ordcrs; (4) controls to cnsurc 
compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price 
quotcs. 

The Village does have written guidelines for how purchases are initiated, vendors are added to the vendor 
list, thc prcparation and approval proccss of purchasc rcquisitions and purchasc ordcrs for payment of 
routinc vcndor paymcnts. Thc Villagc docs havc written guidclincs for following thc procedures required  
by the Louisiana Public Bid Law. Request for purchases must be approved by the Mayor. If approved, a  
purchasc ordcr is complctcd with thc datc, vcndor namc, purchasc ordcr number, and what is nccdcd. A  
copy of thc purchasc ordcr is placcd into a filc. AII vcndors arc approvcd by thc Mayor bcforc bcing 
addcd to thc vcndor list. 

c) Disbursements. including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

The Villaze does have written policies ancl procedures which provicle guidelines for processing, reviewing, 
and approving of disbursements. When an invoicc is received, the Nlavor approves the invoice before 
payment. "'Hie clerk enters the invoice into the....Quiekbooks billing systeni. l hc clerk prints a chcck for 
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The Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 
Independent Accountants Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures (Continued) 

payment. The check is signed by the Mayor. The check stub is attached to the invoice and filed. The 
payment is remitted to the vendor.  

d) Receipts/(.Iollections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. which includes 
management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or 
agency fund additions: 

The Village does have written policies and procedures which provide guidelines for receiving, recording, 
and preparing deposits. Receipts are classified in Quickbooks according to their source, i. e. fines, utility 
payments, taxes, etc. Receipts are issued for all payments received in the office. For payments made in 
the office, a separate person from the person who receives and records the payment counts and reconciles 
the deposit to the source documents. For on-line payments, a report for each deposit is printed and 
reconciled with the bank records. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and attendance 
records, including leave and overtime worked and (3) approval process for employee rates of pay or 
approval and maintenance of pay rate schedule. 

The Village does have written policies and procedures which provide guidelines for pavroll processing and 
approval. Timesheets are kept for the clerk and maintenance personnel. The timesheets are reviewed and 
signed by the Mayor. Payroll is then processed by the clerk in the Quickbooks payroll system. Paychecks 
are presented to the Mayor for signature. Paystubs are attached to the timesheets and filed. Employees do 
not work overtime. 

0 Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and conditions, 
(3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process 

The Village does have written policies and procedures which provide guidelines for contracting including 
types of services requiring written contracts, standard terms and conditions, legal review, approval  
process, and monitoring process. The Village follows the procedures of the Louisiana Public Bid Law  

Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to be 
controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers of 
statements, and (5) monitoring card usage. 

The Village does have written policies and procedures which provide guidelines for (1) how cards are to  
be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers of 
statements, and (5) monitoring card usage.  

h) Travel and expense rennbiersernent, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by category of 
expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

The Village does have written policies and procedures which provide guidelines for travel and expense  
reimbursement, including allowable expenses, dollar thresholds by category of expense, documentation 
requirements, and required approvers. When employees use their personal vehicles for errands, they are  
required to submit a request for reimbursement which reports total mileage, destination, purpose of trip, 
and date. If they travel on Village business, a request for reimbursement is submitted to the clerk and  
approved by the Mayor. After approval, payment is made for the requested reimbursement.  

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, (2) actions to 
be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) 
requirement that all employees, including elected officials, annually attest through signature verification 
that they have read the Village's ethics policy. Note: Ethics requirements are not applicable to nonprofits. 

The Village does have written policies and procedures for compliance with ethics as defined in Louisiana 
Revised Statue 42:111-1121. All elected officials filed their annual financial statements as required and 
took the required one hour of ethics training.  



The Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 
Independent Accountants Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures (Continued) 

j) Debi Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosures/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

The Village does have written policies and procedures for debt service. The Village complies with R.S.  
39:1410.6(1 when incurring debt. To comply with bond covenants, the Village has set up payments on 
automatic bank draft. To fund its bond sinking reserve, the clerk has prepared a schedule of required 
deposits. As reserve deposits are made, the Mayor is presented proof of deposit. The Village's reserve 
account was fully funded for the year ended September 30, 2023.  

k) Disasier Recovery/Business Coniinuily, including (1) identification of critical data and frequency 
of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location isolated frorn the network, 
(3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all 
systems, (5) tirnely application of all available systern and software patches/updates, and (6) 
identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

The Village's policies and procedures rnanual does provide guidelines for disaster 
recovery/business continuity. The Village uses an off-site back-up systern and critical files are 
backed up daily. The Village's IT contractor performs periodic testing and verification that back-
ups can be restored. All cornputer systems have antivirus software installed and updates to 
software are installed in a tirnely manner. The Village's IT contractor maintains their computers, 
and his services would be utilized during a disaster recovery.  

Board or Finance Committee 

2) I obtained and inspected the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's enabling 
legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

a) Observed whether the board/finance committee met with a quonim at least monthly, or on a frequency in 
accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws or other equivalent document. 

The Village's board of alderman met with a quorum on a frequency in accordance with the Village's charter.  

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or 
included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund and major special revenue funds, as well 
as monthly financial statements. 

The Village's minutes did not reference monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the financial information.  
The clerk does provide monthlv budget- to actual comparison financial statements to the board.  

c) For governrnental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unrestricted fund balance 
in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unrestricted fund balance in the prior 
year audit report, observe that the rninutes for at least one rneeting during the fiscal period referenced 
or included a forrnal plan to elirninate the negative unrestricted fund balance in the general fund. 

N/A 
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Bank Reconciliations 

3) I obtained a listing of client bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. I asked management to identify the Villae's main operating account. 
For each of the bank accounts selected, I randomly selected one month from the fiscal period, obtained and 
inspected the corresponding bank statements and reconciliations for each account, and observed that: 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related statement 
closing date. 

Bank reconciliations were performed timely on all bank accounts provided by the Village's management.  

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not handle 
cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, 
electronically logged); and 

The bank reconciliations are prepared by the clerks and reviewed monthly by the Mayor. No reconciled iterns 
were on the bank statement outstanding for more than six months as of the end of the fiscal period.  

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been outstanding 
for more than 12 months as of the end of the fiscal period. 

No reconciled iterns were on the bank statement outstanding for more than twelve rnonths as of the end of the 
fiscal period.  

Collections 

4) I obtained a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) are 
prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. I tested the collections from each of the 
two sites of the Village. 

5) The Village has only one deposit site and collection location. For that location, obtained and inspected vaitten 
policies and procedures relating to employee job duties at each location, and observed that job duties are properly 
segregated at each collection location such that: 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

Two employees are responsible for collecting cash. They share the same cash drawer, but a third employee 
who does not collect cash counts and reconciles collections to reports from the utility system, police ticket 
collection system and receipts.  

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing /making bank deposits, unless 
another employee/official is responsible for reconcilirw collection documentation (e.g. pre-numbered receipts) 
to the deposit. 

The clerk collects cash sometirnes and also prepares the deposit slip. An ernployee who is not responsible for 
preparing /making bank deposits reconciles the collection documentation.  

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to the general 
ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling ledger postings to 
each other and to the deposit. 

The clerk collects cash sometimes and also post collections to the general ledger. An employee who is not 
responsible for preparing /making bank deposits reconciles the collection documentation to the general ledger. 
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d) The ernployee responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger andior subsidiary ledgers, by 
revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, unless another employee 
verifies the reconciliation. 

The ernployee responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger andior subsidiary ledgers by 
revenue source and/or agency fund additions is sometirnes responsible for collecting cash, but another 
employee verifies the reconciliation.  

6) I inquired of management that all employees who have access to cash are covered by a bond or insurance policy 
for theft. 

All individuals responsible for handling cash and checks are bonded.  

7) I randomly selected two deposit dates for each of the bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under "Bank 
Reconciliations" above. (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates 
randornly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are rnade on the sarne day. I obtained 
supporting documentation for each of the eight (8) deposits and: 

a) Observed that receipts were sequentially pre-numbered. 

b) Traced sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection documentation to the 
deposit slip. 

c) Traced the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

d) Observed that the deposit was made within one (1) business day of receipt at the collection location (within 
one week if the depositoty is rnore than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less than S100). 

e) Traced the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

My testing disclosed no discrepancies.  

Non-Payroll Disbursements (excludin2 card purchases/pavmeuts, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 
purchases) 

8) I obtained a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's representation that 
the listing was complete. I selected the one location where payrnents are processed. 

9) For each location selected under #8 above, I obtained a listing of those employees involved with non-payroll 
purchasing and payment fitnctions. I obtained written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if 
the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties), and observe that 
job duties are properly segregated such that: 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and placing an 
order/making the purchase. 

All purchases were not rnade by purchase orders but were all approved by the appropriate levels of 
rnanagement who did not initiate the purchase except for purchases rnade by the Mayor. My testing did not 
disclose any discrepancies.  

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

The person requesting purchases are separate frorn approval functions except for purchases made by the  
Mayor. All purchases, except those purchases made by the Mayor, are pre-approved by the appropriate level  
of rnanagement. Payments for purchases are paid by original invoices.  

c) The ernployee responsible for processing payrnents is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor files, unless 
another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 
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The person responsible for processing payments is not prohibited from adding vendors to the Village's 
purchasing and disbursement system but is separate from the person who authorizes and signs checks. All 
vendor additions and disbursements were approved by authorized personnel and management at an appropriate 
level.  

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed checks to an 
employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

The person who mails checks is separate from the persons with signatory authority and makes the final  
authorizafion and the person who processes payments.  

10) For each location selected under #8 above, I obtained the Village's non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtained management's representation that the 
population is complete. I randomly selected 5 disbursements for each location, obtained supporting documentation 
for each transaction and: 

a) Observed that the disbursement matched the related original invoice/billing statement. 

My testing did not disclose any discrepancies.  

b) Observed that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic logging) of 
segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

My testing did not disclose any discrepancies.  

11) Using the Village's rnain operating account and the rnonth selected in Bank Reconciliations procedure 
#3, I randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic disbursements if 
less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursernent was (a) approved by only those persons 
authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the Village's policy, and (b) approved by the required 
number of authorized signers per the Village's policy. Note: If no electronic payrnents were rnade frorn 
the rnain operating account during the rnonth selected the practitioner should select an alternative rnonth 
and/or account for testing that does include electronic disbursements. 

My testing did not disclose any discrepancies.  

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

12) I obtained from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards (cards), 
including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the cards and obtained 
manaement's representation that the listing is complete. 

13) Using the listing prepared by management, I selected the four credit cards and one debit card that were used during 
the fiscal period. I randomly selected one monthly statement or combined statement for each card (for a debit 
card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtained supporting documentation, and: 

a) Observed that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation (e.g., original receipts for creditidebit card purchases, exception reports for excessive fuel card 
usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the authorized card holder. [Note: 
Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., mayor of a 
Lavv-rason Act municipality); these instances should not be reported.)] 

My testing did not disclose any discrepancies.  
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b) Observed that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

On one of the credit cards the Village incurred interest expense and late fees during one of the test months. 

14) I used the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, randomly 
selected all transactions from each statement, and obtained supporting documentation for the transactions. For 
each transaction, I observed that it was supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what 
was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals 
participating in meals (for meal charges only). 

My testing did not disclose any discrepancies.  

Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

15)Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the fiscal period 
and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly select 5 
reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected 
reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established either by the State of 
Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

There were no amounts paid for travel and expense reimbursement that exceeded General Services 
Administration rates.  

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized receipt 
that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

My testing did not disclose any discrepancies.  

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for meal 
charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals participating) and other 
documentation required by written policy (procedure #1h). 

My testing did not disclose any discrepancies.  

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the person 
receiving reimbursement. 

My testing did not disclose any discrepancies.  

Contracts  

15) I obtained from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. Alternately, 
the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. I obtained 
management's representation that the listing is complete. The Village had only one (1) contract for an 
equipment lease. I selected the one (1) contract from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 
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a) I observed that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., solicited quotes or 
bids, advertised), if required by law. 

The Village did not have any formal written contracts.  

b) I observed that the contract was approved by the gove ing body/board, if required by policy or law (e.g. 
Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

N/A  

c) If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), I observed that the original contract terms provided for such 
an amendment. N/A 

d) I randomly selected one payment from the fiscal period for the contract, obtained the supporting invoice, 
agreed the invoice to the contract terms, and observed that the invoice and related payment agreed to the terms 
and conditions of the contract. 

N/A 

Payroll and Personnel 

16) I obtained a listing of employees employed during the fiscal period and managernent's representation that the 
listing is complete. I randomly selected five (5) employees, obtained related paid salaries and personnel files, and 
agreed paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

My testing did not disclose any discrepancies.  

17) I randomly selected one pay period during the fiscal period. For the five (5) employees selected under #16 above, 
I obtained attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

a) Observed that all selected employees documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., vacation, sick, 
compensatory). 

b) Observed that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees/officials. 

c) Observed that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the Village's cumulative 
leave records. 

d) Observe that the rate paid to ernployees or officials agrees to the authorized salary/pay rate found in the 
personnel file. 

My testing did not disclose any discrepancies.  

18) I obtained a listing of those employees/officials that received termination payments during the fiscal period and 
managernent's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees/officials, obtain related 
docurnentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination payment calculations, agree the hours 
to the employeelofficials' cumulate leave records, and agree the pay rates to the employeelofficials' authorized pay 
rates in the employee/officials' personnel files. 

The Village did not have any terminated employees during the fiscal year.  

19) I obtained management's representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, retirement 
contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers' compensation prerniuins have been paid, and associated 
forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

The Village is currently on an instalhnent agreernent for payroll taxes incurred during fiscal years ending 
September 30, 2015 and 2016. All back payroll taxes were fully paid by January 24, 2024.  
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Ethics (excludin2 nonprofits)  

20) Using the five (5) randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" above• 
obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a. I observed that the documentation demonstrates each employee/officio.l completed one hour of ethics training 
during the fiscal period. 

My testing did not disclose any discrepancies.  

b. I observed that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official attested through signature verification 
that lie or she has read the Village's ethics policy during the fiscal period. 

The Village does not have a policy requiring each elected official to attest by signature to verify that he or she 
has read the Village's policy during the fiscal year.  

Debt Service 

21) Obtain a listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is 
complete. Select all bonds/notes on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond 
Commission approval was obtained for each bond/note issued. 

The Village did not issue any debt during the fiscal period.  

22) Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting documentation for 
the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt 
covenants. 

The Village made all of the scheduled debt service payments on its outstanding debt. 

Fraud Notice 

23) Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting 
documentation, and observe that the Village reported the misappropriation( s) to the legislative auditor and the 
district attorney of the parish in which the Village is domiciled. 

The Village did not have any misappropriations of public funds or assets during the fiscal period. 

24) I observed that the Village has posted on its premises and website the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 concerning 
the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

The notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 was posted by the Village. 

9 



The Village of North Hodge, Louisiana 
Independent Accountants Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures (Continued) 

Information Technology Disaster Recoverv/Business Continuity  

25) I performed the following procedures and verbally discussed the results with management: 

a) Obtain and inspect the Village's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical data. 

The Village uses an off-site back-up system and critical files are backed up daily. The Village's IT contractor 
performs periodic testing and verification that back-ups can be restored. All computer systems have antivirus 
software installed and updates to software are installed in a timely manner. The Village's IT contractor 
maintains their computers, and his services would be utilized during a disaster recovery. 

b) Obtain and inspect the Village's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that its backups can be 
restored. 

The IT contractor provided documentation of the most recent back-up was tested and verified it could be 
restored.  

c) Obtain a listing of the Village's computers currently in use and their related locations, and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and observe while management 
demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active antivinis software and that the operating 
system and accounting system software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 

All computer systerns have antivinis software installed and updates to software are installed in a timelv 
manner.  

26) Using the 5 randornly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, I obtained 
cybersecurity training docurnentation frorn rnanagernent, and observed that the docurnentation 
dernonstrates that the following employees/officials with access to the agency's information technology 
assets have completed cybersecurity training as required by R.S. 42:1267. The requirements are as 
follows: 

• Hired before June 9, 2020 - completed the training; and 

• Hired on or after June 9, 2020 - completed the training within 30 days of initial 
service or ernployrnent. 

The Village personnel had not obtained cybersecurity training as required by R.S. 42:1267. 

Sexual Harassment 

27) Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" 
above, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, 

Officials and employees are required to complete one hour of sexual harassment training at the same 
time of completing the ethics training on-line with the state.  

28) I observed the Village has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website (or 
in a conspicuous location on the Villae's premises if the Village does not have a website). 

29) Obtain the Village's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report 
was dated on or before February 1, and observe it includes the applicable requirements of R.S. 42:344: 
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a) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training requirements. 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency. 

c) Number of complaints which resulted in a fmding that sexual harassment occurred. 

e) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or corrective action; 
and 

0 Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

The Village did not have any sexual harassment complaints during the fiscal year.  

I was not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of 
an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, I do not express such 
an opinion or conclusion. Had I performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to my attention that 
would have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, this report 
is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as 
a public document. 

Rosie D. Harper 
Certified Public Accountant 

Monroe, Louisiana 
March 24, 2024 
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